
 
City of McMinnville 

AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 
McMINNVILLE CIVIC HALL 

200 NE Second Street 
 

Tuesday, November 3, 2015 
6:30 p.m. 

 
 

Chair Jody Christensen 

Commissioner Andy Benedict  Commissioner Brad Berry 
Commissioner Doug Hurl Vice-Chair John Lautenbach 
Commissioner Bob Peacock Councilor Alan Ruden 

 
 
 

Welcome!  All persons addressing the Airport Commission will please use the table at the front of 
the Board Room.  If you desire to speak on any agenda item, please raise your hand to be 
recognized after the Chair calls the item.  If you wish to address the Commission on any item not on 
the agenda, you may respond as the Chair calls for the “Invitation to Citizens for Public Comment” 
agenda item. 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER (Chair Christensen) 

2. INVITATION TO CITIZENS FOR PUBLIC COMMENT  
• This section of the agenda allows for citizens to address the Airport Commission regarding 

any issue not on the agenda.  The Chair will also invite airport users and business owners to 
report on current activities at the airport.  Matters requiring further investigation or detailed 
answers will be referred to City staff for follow-up at a future meeting. 

3. CONSIDER MINUTES OF THE JULY 21, 2015 COMMISSION MEETING  
• Commission Action Required: By MOTION and VOTE, the Commission shall approve 

the minutes from the July 21st meeting. 

4. FIXED BASE OPERATOR REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (Martha Meeker) 
• Review of the proposed Fixed Based Operator Request For Proposal (RFP) results. 

• Commission Action Required: By MOTION and VOTE, the Commission shall make a 
recommendation to the City Council regarding awarding 
the FBO lease to Konect Aviation Oregon LLC. 

5. FAA LEASE REQUEST  (Rich Spofford) 
• Consideration of the proposed lease with FAA for a portion of the City owned building at 3975 

Cirrus Avenue (Oregon State Police Building). 

• Commission Action Required: By MOTION and VOTE, the Commission shall make a 
recommendation to the City Council regarding the 
proposed lease. 

 

 



Airport Commission Agenda 2 November 3, 2015 
 
 
 

 

6. ITEMS FROM STAFF  
A. Airport Manager’s Report (Graham Goad) 

7. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS (All) 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

NOTE:  The next Airport Commission meeting will be on Tuesday, January 5, 2016 @ 
6:30pm in the Civic Hall Building, 200 NE Second Street. 

 

 

 
 



AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 
Tuesday, November 3, 2015 
6:30pm 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 3. MINUTES OF THE JULY 21, 2015 MEETING 
 

 Attachment 1:  Proposed minutes. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BLANK PAGE 



 

 
 
 

McMinnville Airport Commission  
Meeting Minutes 

 
McMinnville Airport, 

Civic Hall 
Tuesday, July 21, 2015 

 
 
 
 

1. The meeting was called to order at 6:34pm by Jody Christensen.  Commissioners present were Jody 
Christensen, Doug Hurl, Bob Peacock and John Lautenbach.  Others present were Mike Bisset and 
Rich Spofford (City of McMinnville); Martha Meeker (City Manager); and Graham Goad (Airport 
Manager) 

  
2. Invitation to Citizens for Public Comment

 
:  There were no comments from the public 

3. Consider Minutes of the March 3, 2015 Commission Meeting

 

:  The minutes from March 3, 2015 
meeting were reviewed by the commissioners.  Commissioner Lautenbach made a motion to approve 
the minutes as presented; the motion was seconded by Commissioner Hurl; and the minutes were 
approved by unanimous vote of the Commissioners present. 

4. Fixed Base Operator Request for Proposal

 

:  City Manager Meeker reviewed the Fixed Base 
Operator (FBO) Request for Proposal (RFP) and highlighted some of the main points.  Chair 
Christensen spoke of the economic and business development opportunities at the airport, and of the 
McMinnville Economic Development Partnership working with the selected FBO provider.  She also 
thanked Robbie Sturm of Cirrus Aviation for her years of service to the airport. 

Tony Hann introduced himself as the FBO operator at the Albany and Mulino airports.  He stated that 
he would possibly submit a proposal for operating the FBO in McMinnville.  Commissioner Lautenbach 
asked Mr. Hann if he is a pilot, and Mr. Hann indicated that he is. 

 
5. Fly Friendly Program Contract

 

:  Mike Bisset reviewed the proposed contract with Century West to 
develop a “Fly Friendly” program for the McMinnville Airport.  The proposed cost of the project is 
$28,842.70.  Commissioner Hurl asked if this would address the helicopter traffic issues, Mike Bisset 
said that it would. 

Jody Lucich (airport neighbor) asked the commission to “please vote for it” 
 

Mike Bisset mentioned the Donna Cunningham (airport neighbor) had contacted him and asked for the 
commission to vote in favor of the program. 

 

Commissioner Peacock made a motion recommending that the City Council approve the contract with 
Century West; Commissioner Hurl seconded the motion; and all commissioners presented voted in 
favor. 

 
6. Airstrip Attack Event Update

 

:  Rich Spofford spoke of the event and noted that everything was on 
schedule and that the organizers were excited.  Chair Christensen indicated that she had a meeting 
with Ryan Fisher (event organizer) and that he had commented how easy the City had been to work 
with on this event.  Chair Christensen noted that an event press kit had been published. 

  



Airport Commission Minutes 
July 21, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 
 

7. Items from Staff
• He noted that the “Airport Clean Up Day” on April 25, 2015 was successful;  

:  Graham Goad gave the Airport Manager’s report:  

• He discussed a meeting with other staff and staff from the Oregon Department of Aviation that 
occurred at the airport on May 4, 2015;  

• He indicated that he had a visit from Regional Director of Life Flight on June 14, 2015, and that 
they were looking to base a second helicopter in the valley.  During the discussion it was 
determined that the McMinnville Airport did not have the type of facilities they were looking for. 

• He noted that he was working with Dan Prichard from the KR club that wanted to have their 
annual gathering at the McMinnville Airport on the Labor Day weekend.   

• He mentioned that Roger Kelsey (Premier Jet in Hillsboro) had visited the airport, and he was 
looking for an area on the airport to get an aircraft he had bought from the museum airworthy.  
Graham showed him some areas and a suitable location was selected.  Graham has sent Roger 
an email approving the request, and noting the requirements that must be met.   

 
City Manager Meeker spoke of the painting project with the Boy Scouts where the “McMINNVILLE” sign 
on the ramp was repainted successfully.   

 
8. Items from Commissioners

 
:  There were no comments from the Commissioners. 

Mike Bisset noted that the next Airport Commission meeting was scheduled for Tuesday, September 1, 
2015 @ 6:30pm but that the meeting may be rescheduled to Tuesday, October 6, 2015 @ 6:30pm to 
allow the Commission to review the fixed base operator RFP results.  

 
9. The meeting was adjourned at 7:02 pm 

 
 
 
 



AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 
Tuesday, November 3, 2015 
6:30pm 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 4. FIXED BASED OPERATOR REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

 Attachment 1:  Staff Memo 
 Attachment 2:  Copies of received proposals. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BLANK PAGE 



 

 

 
M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

 

DATE: October 27, 2015 

TO:  Airport Commission 

SUBJECT: Fixed Base Operator (FBO) Request for Proposals (RFP) results 
 

 

At the July 21st

 

 Commission meeting, the Airport Commission approved the Fixed Base 
Operator (FBO) Request for Proposals (RFP) document.  Subsequent to the meeting, staff 
issued the RFP (see attachment #3). 

RFP responses were due on September 4, 2015 at 5:00pm.  Two responses were received; 
one from Konect Aviation Oregon LLC and one from Infinite Air Center (see attachments #1 
and #2). 
 
A review committee (comprised of City Manager Martha Meeker, Community Development 
Director Mike Bisset, Engineering Manager Rich Spofford, and Airport Manager Graham Goad) 
evaluated the proposals per the criteria outlined in the RFP.  Additionally, both firms were 
interviewed by the review committee on Wednesday, October 7, 2015. 
 
Upon completion of the RFP review process and firm interviews, it was the consensus of the 
review committee Konect Aviation Oregon LLC (Konect) was the highest ranked proposer, and 
their proposal was in the best interest of the City.  The review committee noted that the Konect 
proposal includes a detailed business plan, while the Infinite proposal did not.  Additionally, the 
review committee felt that Konect’s knowledge of the airport and their connections to the 
community will be important to ensuring that the FBO remains a viable, functioning business at 
the airport.   
 
Next steps in the FBO RFP process include City Council approval of the RFP results, followed 
by lease negotiations with Konect.  Upon completion of the negotiations, the proposed FBO 
lease will be presented to the Airport Commission and City Council for review and approval.  It 
is expected that the lease with Konect will commence on July 1, 2016 (following the end of the 
current FBO lease with Cirrus Aviation on June 30, 2016). 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Airport Commission, by motion and vote, 
make a recommendation that the City Council approve the results of the FBO RFP process, 
and that they direct staff to enter into lease negotiations with Konect Aviation Oregon LLC for 
providing FBO services effective July 1, 2016. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BLANK PAGE 



































































































































FIXED BASED OPERATOR McMINNVILLE AIRPORT 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

RFP Due 
August 28th, 
2015 5:00 pm 

SUBMIT PROPOSALS TO: 

Community Development Center
City of McMinnville
231 NE Fifth Street

McMinnville, OR 97128

Refer Questions To
Rich Spofford
PHONE (503) 434-7312  RFP Issue Date:  August 3rd, 2015 



Page 2 of 24 2

Requests for Proposals: 

Fixed Base Operator
McMinnville OR Airport

August 3rd, 2015



Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 3 of 19 3

Request for Proposals 
Fixed Base Operator 

McMinnville Municipal Airport, Oregon 

The City of McMinnville is soliciting competitive sealed proposals from qualified Fixed Base Operators 
(“FBOs”) or other aviation Commercial Service Operators (hereinafter collectively referred to as 
“Operator”) to lease, manage, operate, maintain, develop and promote aviation commercial 
operations and development at the McMinnville Municipal Airport (“MMV” or “Airport”) located 
approximately 35 miles southwest of Portland. 

Figure 1 - Location Map 

meekerm
Oval



Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 4 of 19 4

McMinnville Municipal Airport FBO Needs 

The City of McMinnville owns and operates the Airport.  Currently, Cirrus Aviation, provides aircraft 
parts and rentals, flight instruction, aircraft maintenance, and fuel (100LL and Jet A) utilizing City-
owned facilities through a contract terminating June 30th 2016 .  The City wishes to maximize the 
financial viability, success and potential growth of the Airport by securing a new contract with a private 
sector entity for expanded capabilities including not only the aforementioned services currently 
provided but also airport management and economic development planning.  In addition to the 
existing City-owned facility used for the FBO, a number of additional sites are available for review. The 
selected operator will have the right to lease certain real property and use the leased premises for the 
purposes of operating the proposed business. 

About McMinnville Municipal Airport 

The McMinnville Municipal Airport is located on a 650 acre site approximately three miles east of 
McMinnville, Oregon.  Local airport activity includes business and general aviation users, 
commercial glider operations and visitors to the local community and surrounding area.  The 
development of the Yamhill County's wine industry has significantly increased local tourism, which 
in turn contributed to increased use of the airport as a business transportation facility.

Figure 2 - Airport Layout 



Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 5 of 19 
5

Aircraft Fuel Data 
Fuel delivery data indicates current and recent volumes of jet fuel (Jet A) are higher than recorded in the 
1998 to 2002 period (annual levels ranging from 38,000 to 82,000 gallons).  Despite the end of Evergreen 
Aviation operations at Airport in 2014, the Jet A volume in the first half of 2014 (100,713 gallons) nearly  
equaled the total volume for all of 2013 (112,980).   Overall jet fuel use appears to be trending  upward,  
suggesting a relatively broad customer base for both fuel sales and  transient turbine aircraft operations. 

Instrument operations data 
An evaluation of instrument flight plan data was conducted for calendar years 2014 and 2007 to capture 
both current and pre‐recession flight activity levels.  The current/recent instrument activity at the airport 
(1,695 and 1,420 annual instrument operations) appears to be tracking relatively closely to the 2004 ALP 
forecast assumptions over the 20‐year planning period in terms of actual instrument activity (450 to 700 
annual instrument approaches). Table 1 summarizes the activity by Airport Reference Code (ARC).  Table 
2 provides a detailed breakdown by aircraft type and weight. 

TABLE 1: GENERAL AVIATION INSTRUMENT OPERATIONS – (MMV) ‐ 2007/2014 

ARC  Representative Aircraft  2007  20141 

A‐I  Cessna 182/Beechcraft Baron 55/TBM700  690  732 

B‐I  Beechcraft Baron 58/Beechcraft King Air 90/Cessna Citation (CJ1)  244  318 

C‐I  Hawker HS125, Learjet 31  25  2 

D‐I  Learjet 35  110  7 

A‐II  Cessna Caravan/Pilatus PC12/Beech 18  38  59 

B‐II  Cessna Citation Bravo/Beechcraft King Air 200/Falcon 50  94  188 

C‐II  Bombardier Challenger (CL600)  60  92 

D‐II  Gulfstream 500  64  12 

A‐III  Douglas DC‐3  3  0 

B‐III  ATR 42/ATR 72/Dash 8/Metro IV  0  28 

C‐IV  Lockheed C130  1  0 

‐‐  Blocked (assumed to be 70% B‐I/II Jet and 30% C‐I/II and D‐I/II Jet)  64  136 

‐‐  Helicopter  27  121 

Total GA Instrument Operations  1,420  1,695 

Source: FlightAware. 1. 12 months ending November 5, 2014 

The Airport has two paved runways - Runway 4/22 and runway 17/35.  Runways 4/22  is served by a full-
length parallel taxiway with an access taxiway to the end of Runway 35.  Runway 4/22 has high intensity 
runway edge lighting (HIRL), lighted distance remaining signs and precision instrument runway markings.  
Runway 17/35 is unlighted and has basic (visual) markings.  Runway 4/22 has a pavement strength rating 
of 40,000 pounds for single wheel landing gear, 50,000 pounds for dual wheel landing gear and 80,000 
pounds for aircraft with dual tandem landing gear.  Runway 22 is equipped with an instrument landing 
system (ILS) and a medium intensity approach light system (MALS).  Runway 4 is equipped with runway 
end identifier lights (REIL).   Precision approach path indicators (PAPI) are located on both ends of 
Runway 4/22.



Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

6Page 6 of 19 

TABLE 2: INSTRUMENT OPERATIONS BY AC TYPE – MMV 2007/2014 

ARC  Representative Aircraft  MGTW 
Landing 
Gear  2007  20141 

Approach Category A & B Aircraft 
12,500 lbs. or Less 

A‐I Piston Single (≤12,500#)  Cessna 182  2,950  SW  628  562 

A‐I/B‐I Piston Multi (≤12,500#)  Raytheon/Beechcraft Baron 58  5,500  SW  215  199 

A‐II Piston Multi (<12,500#)  Beechcraft E18  9,300  SW  2  0 

A‐I Turboprop (≤12,500#)  Socata TBM‐800  7,395  SW  10  16 

A‐II Turboprop (≤12,500#)  Pilatus PC‐12  10,450  SW  38  61 

B‐I Turboprop (≤12,500#)  Raytheon/Beechcraft King Air 100  11,800  SW  47  162 

B‐II Turboprop (≤12,500#)  Raytheon/Beechcraft King Air 200  12,500  DW  12  34 

B‐I Jet  (≤12,500#)  Cessna Citation CJ2  12,500  SW  8  97 

Approach Category A & B Aircraft > 
Than 12,500 lbs.  

B‐II Turboprop (>12,500#)  Raytheon/Beechcraft King Air 350  15,000  DW  20  9 

B‐I Jet (>12,500#)  Raytheon/Beechcraft 400A  16,100  DW  26  14 

B‐II Jet (>12,500#)  Cessna Citation Excel (CE560)  20,200  SW  60  143 

A‐III Piston (>12,500#)  Douglas DC‐3  25,200  SW  3  0 

B‐III /Turboprop (>12,500#)  ATR 42/ATR 72/Dash 8/Metro IV 
16,000‐
50,265 

DW  0  28 

Blocked (B‐II Jet >12,500#)  Cessna Citation Bravo (CE550)  13,500  SW  45  95 

Subtotal ‐ Large A & B   154  289 

Approach Category C & D Aircraft > 
Than 12,500 lbs. 

C‐I Jet (>12,500#)  Learjet 60  23,500  DW  25  2 

C‐II Jet (>12,500#)  Canadair Challenger 600  43,100  DW  60  92 

D‐I Jet (>12,500#)  Learjet 35  18,300  DW  110  7 

D‐II (Jet (>12,500#)  Gulfstream 500  85,100  DW  64  12 

C‐IV Turboprop (>12,500#)  Lockheed C130  155,000  DW  1  0 

Blocked (C‐I Jet) (>12,500#)  Learjet 60  23,500  DW  2  4 

Blocked (C‐II Jet) (>12,500#)  Canadair Challenger 600  43,100  DW  4  9 

Blocked (D‐I Jet) (>12,500#)  Learjet 35  18,300  DW  8  18 

Blocked (D‐II Jet) (>12,500#)  Gulfstream 500  85,100  DW  5  10 

Subtotal ‐ Large C & D   279  154 

Subtotal – All Large (A‐D)  433  443 

Helicopter  27  121 

Total GA Instrument Operations  1,420  1,695 



Activity Projections 

Overall Airport Operations:  2014 FAA Terminal Area Forecast (TAF)
Fixed Wing Turbine Operations Activity: Derived from 2014 FlightAware Instrument Flight Activity  

TABLE 3: PROJECTED LARGE AIRPLANE OPERATIONS – (MMV) 
2014  2015 2020 2025 2030  2035

Total Operations (TAF)   65,348 66,295 71,235 76,546 82,265  88,414

Fixed Wing Turbine Aircraft  
>12,500# Operations (IFR) (95%) 

443  449 483 519 558  599

Fixed Wing Turbine Aircraft  
>12,500# Operations (VFR) (5%) 

23  24 25 27 29  31

Total Fixed Wing Turbine Aircraft 
>12,500# Operations 

466  473 508 546 587  630

Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

FAA Terminal Area Forecast (TAF) 

The FAA’s 2014 TAF forecast update projects based aircraft to increase from 124 to 180 (+45%) between 
2012 and 2040 (1.34 % AAGR).  Annual aircraft operations are projected to increase from 63,500 to 
95,033 (1.45  %  AAGR)  during  the  same  period.  Table  4  summarizes  the  FAA  TAF.  The  TAF  based  
aircraft  projection for 2013 and  the annual operations total for 2012 are presented on the current FAA  
Master  Airport Record Form (5010), dated 12 months ending 6/14/12.

 Based Aircraft:  126

 Aircraft Operations:  63,500

TABLE 4: 2014 FAA TAF FORECAST SUMMARY 

2012  2015  2020  2025  2030  2035 

Based Aircraft 

Single Engine  84  89  98  108  118  128 

Multi‐Engine  10  10  10  10  10  10 

Jet  4  4  4  4  4  4 

Helicopter  11  11  12  13  13  13 

Other  15  15  15  15  15  15 

Based Aircraft  124  129  139  150  160  170 

Aircraft Operations 

Itinerant  

General Aviation  40,000  41,804  44,987  48,415  52,101  56,063 

Air Taxi & Commercial  0  0 0 0 0 0

Military  1,500  1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

Local (All GA)  22,000  22,991  24,748  26,631  28,644  30,851 

Total Operations  63,500  66,295  71,235  76,546  82,265 88,414

Average Operations per Based 
Aircraft 

512  514  513  510  514 520

Page 7 of 19 



Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 8 of 19 

FBO Facilities 

The FBO currently conducts operations out of a former military barracks that was imported from Camp 
Adair in 1946. As a result of 62 years of growth and the changing face of McMinnville, the current FBO 
building has become outdated and is in need of replacement.  The FBO building houses office space, a 
pilot waiting area and restrooms but is considered too small to effectively serve as a terminal building. 
In addition, there are two Quonset style hangars dating back to the 1940s. The front section of the 
west Quonset hangar includes two floors of finished interior space. The other hangars in the 
immediate terminal area were constructed in the 1950s or 1960s. The west T -hangar area was initially 
constructed in the 1970s with one 12-unit T -hangar and has been gradually expanded to its current 
capacity.

Proposers to the RFP  are encourage to submit proposals reflecting either updates to the current FBO 
facilities or the development of a new FBO building for which several sites are available on the Airport 
(see Figure 3).    Ultimately, the City is interested in providing first-class FBO facilities and operations at 
the Airport and encourages innovative submissions that include investment and the promotion of air 
transportation as well as economic development at the Airport.

Future Construction 

The City has secured $7.8 million for a total refurbishment of Runway 4/22 scheduled for the latter 
half of 2016 with completion excepted by the end of the year.  Runway 17/35 will remain open.  Other 
projects under consideration are listed in the airport's five year Captial Improvement Plan which is 
available upon request.

MMV has both aviation gasoline (AVGAS) and jet fuel available for sale. The airport has two City-owned 
12,000-gallon aboveground tanks--one each for jet fuel (Jet A) and 100LL aviation gasoline (AVGAS).  
The FBO owns a I ,500-gallon truck for Jet Fuel and a I ,250-gallon truck for AVGAS.  The tanks and 
fueling facilities are located near the northwest corner of the terminal apron.

Should FBO operations need to be temporarily relocated to allow construction, facilities exist that can 
accommondate satellite operations out of an existing facility.  It is highly desirable that any 
construction take place in conjunction with reduced operations during Runway 4/22 reconstruction.

Hangar and Miscellenous Facilities 

Part of any proposal should include management and minor maintenance of the following City 
owned facilities.  



Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 9 of 19 8

Figure 3 – FBO Development Sites 



Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 10 of 19 13

Proposal Scope of Work and Submission Criteria

The City of McMinnville, Oregon is soliciting competitive proposals from qualified Fixed Base Operators 
or other aviation commercial service operators to lease, manage, operate, maintain, develop and 
promote aviation commercial services and development at McMinnville Municipal Airport, Oregon. 
Currently, there is one FBO at the Airport operated by Cirrus Aviation.  The City's contract with Cirrus 
Aviation terminates May 2016 and this solicitation is for replacement services following the end of this 
contract.   

The City wishes to maximize the financial viability, success and potential growth of the Airport by 
securing a new contract with a private sector entity for expanded capabilities including not only the 
aforementioned services currently provided but also airport management and economic development 
planning. The City is also interested in receiving proposals that afford first-class FBO services at the 
Airport through a long-term lease arrangement. The City reserves the right to discontinue or alter this 
solicitation at any time.  

Required Services

Services will be available from 08:00 AM to 5:00 PM 7 days a week

Inherent within economic development and promotion is the development of a strategic business plan 
which is expected to include an industry overview and market analysis about trends and competition, 
discussion about products and services and possible future changes, review of the legal and regulatory 
context, and management policies and procedures used in the conduct of business. This plan should 
look at a 20-year time horizon, with firmer information for the 10-year horizon.



Page 11 of 19 

Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 



14

Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

A. Submission Format 

Respondents shall prepare their proposal into the following sections: 

Section 1 – Introduction 
Section 2 – Company Information 
Section 3 – Qualifications 
Section 4 – Proposal 
Section 5 – Rents and Fees 
Section 6 – Declarations 

Section 1 – Introduction. Provide a general overview of your company and its interest in providing 
FBO Services at McMinnville Municipal Airport.  

Section 2 – Company Information. Provide specific information regarding your company, including:

For official and confidential use by the City of McMinnville

Purpose/Instructions:  The following information will be used by the City in determining whether or not 
the identified Proposer has, in the opinion of the City, the financial capability to lease the Lease Parcel. 

Official Company/Entity Name: (hereinafter “Proposer”) 
Mailing Address
If at this address less than a year, please include prior address
Primary contact
Telephone Number
Email Address











 Social Security Number if a sole proprietorship










 Social Security Number if a sole proprietorship

 Date    the organization established

Registered state of the organization
Proposer Principals.  Names of owners, officers, directors, trustees and principal representatives of 
the entity.  Please include title and mailing address for each.

If the Proposer is a subsidiary or parent of or affiliated with, any other corporation or corporations, please 
provide the name and address of the corporation or firm, his or her relationship to the proposer and the 
common officers / directors / owners / trustees / representatives of the corporation or firm.

If the Proposer is different than the parent corporation or firm, will the parent corporation or firm 
guarantee performance under this proposal? 

If the Proposer or the parent corporation (if any), or any subsidiary or affiliated corporation of the 
Proposer or parent corporation, or any of the Proposer’s officers or principal members, shareholders or 
investors have filed for bankruptcy, either voluntary or involuntary within the past 10 years, provide the 
name of the individual, the date bankruptcy was filed and the status.

If the Proposer or the parent corporation (if any), or any subsidiary or affiliated corporation of the 
Proposer or parent corporation, or any of the Proposer’s officers or principal members, shareholders 
or investors have defaulted on a loan or other financial obligation please explain the circumstances.

If the Proposer or the parent corporation (if any), or any subsidiary or affiliated corporation of the 
Proposer or parent corporation, or any of the Proposer’s officers or principal members, shareholders or 
investors have been party to any past pending criminal litigation provide the date filed, the name of the 
court and charge.









Page 12 of 19 

FID if a corporation / partnership / business assciation or a joint venture / LLC

mailto:mtheohary@dutchessny.gov


Page 13 of 19 15

Section 3 – Qualifications and Experience Operating FBOs. Provide a detailed description of qualifications to 
operate an FBO at McMinnville Municipal Airport.  Minimally include:  

Business Plan:  The City is committed to fiscal prudence; to doing the right thing for the right reasons; 
and to delivering high quality projects to its citizens. Given the City’s limited staff with an indepth 
knowledge of airport operations, it is critical the selected firm effectively represent the City and deliver 
service aligned with the City’s values.  In light of this, the proposal should illustrate the firm's ability to 
develop Strategic Business Plans that guide long term success while building a collaborative environment 
dedicated to integrity and excellence.





 Experience providing FBO services at airports similar to MMV

Experience in airport operations and management

List Insurance claims filed during the last five (5) years

List any environmental violations and/or claims against proposer(s)

 Identify a minimum of three (3) references, preferably of airport owners or operators, 
with which the firm has completed business within the last five (5) years

If the Proposer or the parent corporation (if any), or any subsidiary or affiliated corporation of the 
Proposer or said parent corporation, or any of the Proposer’s officers or principal members, 
shareholders or investors are party to pending civil litigation that could potentially impact the financial 
capability of the Proposer to complete the proposed development please provide the date filed, the 
court and the current status of the litigation.

If any employee of the City of McMinnville has direct or indirect personal interest in the Proposer or 
in the redevelopment or rehabilitation of the property being proposed by the Proposer, please 
explain said interest.

Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 





Attach to this statement a certified financial statement showing the assets and the liabilities, including 
contingent liabilities, of the Proposer fully itemized in accordance with accepted accounting standards 
and based on a proper audit.  If the date of this certified financial statement precedes the date of this 
submission by more than nine months, also attach an interim balance sheet not more than 60 days old. 

Attach any additional evidence deemed helpful to demonstrate the Proposer’s financial 
capacity and capability to complete the proposed transaction.











Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 14 of 19 16

Section 4 – Proposal. Provide a narrative of up to 50 single-sided 8” x 11” pages describing your 
overall proposed operation of an FBO at McMinnville Municipal Airport. Any graphics or site 
plan layouts may be presented on 11” x 17” paper. The narrative must include at a minimum:  
 Site Selection and Development

• Site selection and proposed development, or if existing facilities, improvements thereto
• Amount, in U.S. dollars, of capital improvements(s) / investment(s) proposed
• Proposed phasing and implementation schedule

 Facility Management and Operations
• Financial Management
• Implementation and Mobilization Plan
• Marketing and Business Development Plan, including annual budget for the first three

(3) years of lease
• Operations Plan including Flight Operations, Ramp Management, Fueling Operations,

Safety Plan and Staff Plan

Section 5 – Rents and Fees. Describe in detail your financial proposal to the City.  The minimum term 
of the agreement will be five (5) years. The maximum term of an agreement, and/or renewals are 
negotiable and are dependent on the proposed overall capital investment at the Airport.  Identify, at a 
minimum, fees and rents to be paid to the City in the following categories:  

 Rent
 Fuel Flowage Fees
 Percentage of Gross Sales
 Minimum Annual Guarantee (MAG) to the City

Section 6 – Declarations and Understandings.  Include an originally signed copy of the “Proposer’s 
Declarations” located at the end of this document.  

Section 7 – Proposal Process  

A. RFP SCHEDULE
The schedule for the RFP process follows. 
August 3rd, 2015 RFP advertisement released
August 21st, 2015 Deadline for questions, requests for clarification and solicitation protests 
August 28th, 2015 (5:00pm) Deadline for City responses to questions, requests for 
clarification and solicitation protests
September 4th, 2015 (5:00pm) Proposals due
September 18th, 2015 (tentative) Notify consultants of results of selection process 
September 25th, 2015 (tentative) Deadline for written protest of selection results 
October 2nd, 2015 (tentative) City response to protest
October 6th, 2015 (tentative) Airport Commission approval
October 13th, 2015 (tentative) City Council approval

B. PROPOSAL DUE DATE
Proposers shall submit sealed proposals containing one (1) signed, clearly marked, easily reproducible 
original and four (4) complete copies to:
Rich Spofford
City of McMinnville Community Development Center
231 NE Fifth Street
McMinnville, OR 97128



The sealed proposals are due no later than 5:00 PM September 4th, 2015.  Proposals received after 
the deadline will be rejected and returned unopened.  Proposals may be mailed to the City, but 
must be received by the above stated date and time.  Facsimile and electronically transmitted 
proposals will not be accepted.

C. QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATION
Questions and requests for clarification regarding this RFP solicitation must be directed in writing (either 
email or fax is acceptable) to:
Rich Spofford
City of McMinnville Community Development Center
231 NE Fifth Street
McMinnville, OR 97128
Phone: (503) 434-7312
Fax: (503) 474-4955
Email: Rich.Spofford@ci.mcminnville.or.us

The deadline for submitting questions or requests for clarification is seven (7) days prior to
the proposal due date.  If a substantive clarification is necessary, an addendum will be issued no later 
than 72 hours prior to the due date to all recorded holders of the RFP solicitation.  Note that 
statements made by the City are not binding upon the City unless confirmed by written addendum.

D. SOLICITATION PROTEST
A proposer who believes the proposal requirements or specifications are unnecessarily restrictive or 
limit competition may submit a protest, or request to change, in writing.  Protests or requests to 
change any provision of this RFP, including the submittal requirements, evaluation criteria, or contract 
terms, must be submitted no later than seven (7) days prior to the proposal due date.  No protest of 
the selection of a consultant, or award of a contract, because of a RFP provision, submittal 
requirements, evaluation criteria, or contract term will be considered after such time.
The protest or request for change shall include:

• The reason for the protest or change;
• The proposed language to address the protest or change; and
• The reason(s) why the proposed language will benefit the City.

The City shall consider the protest or request for change, and may reject the protest or request for 
change, issue an addendum, or cancel the RFP.  Protests or requests for change must be submitted in 
writing to:
Rich Spofford
City of McMinnville Community Development Center
231 NE Fifth Street
McMinnville, OR 97128
Phone: (503) 434-7312
Fax: (503) 474-4955
Email: Rich.Spofford@ci.mcminnville.or.us

E. PROPOSAL MODIFICATIONS OR WITHDRAWAL
Proposal modifications or erasures made before signing by the authorized representative must 
be initialed and dated in ink.  Once submitted, proposals may be modified in writing before the 
time

Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 15 of 19 



and date set for proposal closing.  Any modifications shall be prepared on company letterhead, 
signed by an authorized representative, and state that the new document supersedes or modifies 
the prior proposal.  Modifications must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly marked 
“Proposal Modification”, and identifying the proposal title and closing date and time.  Proposer 
may not modify proposal after proposal closing time.  Any proposal may be withdrawn at any 
time before the proposal due date and time by providing a written notification on company 
letterhead signed by an authorized person.  The withdrawal of a proposal will not prejudice the 
right of the proposer to file a new proposal.

F. CANCELLATION, DELAY OR SUSPENSION OF RFP SOLICITATION; REJECTION OF PROPOSALS 
Nothing in this RFP shall restrict or prohibit the City from cancelling, delaying or suspending the 
RFP solicitation at any time.  The City may reject any or all proposals, in whole or in part, if in 
the best interest of the City, as determined by the City.

G. IRREGULARITIES
The City reserves the right to waive any non-material irregularities or information contained in 
this RFP, or in any received proposal.

H. PROPOSAL COSTS
The City is not liable for any costs incurred by a proposer in the preparation and/or presentation 
of a proposal. Execution of a contract is subject to the availability of funds.

I. AVAILABILITY OF RFQ RESPONSES; PROPRIETARY INFORMATION
Per the terms of ORS 279C.107, the City will open the proposals so as to avoid disclosing the 
contents to competing proposers during the process of negotiation.  Proposals will not be 
available for public review until after the issuance of the Notice of Intent to Award.  To the extent 
possible, the City will withhold from disclosure to the public trade secrets, as defined in ORS 
192.501, and information submitted to the City in confidence, as described in ORS 192.502, that 
are contained in the proposal.  Proposals must clearly identify such material, keep it separate, and 
provide separate notice in writing of the status of this material to:
Rich Spofford
City of McMinnville Community Development Center
231 NE Fifth Street
McMinnville, OR 97128
Phone: (503) 434-7312
Fax: (503) 474-4955
Email: Rich.Spofford@ci.mcminnville.or.us

Page 16 of 19 

Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 



that are substantially similar to the project work contained in this proposal. The proposer
should indicate if the work was accomplished within the original budget and schedule, and
explain why not. Proposers should clearly state the firm’s role in the project, as well as the
roles and responsibilities of key firm personnel involved in the work. Particular emphasis
should be placed describing the similarities between the scope, challenges, and expected
outcomes of the reference projects and the City’s planned projects.
4. COMPLETENESS, CLARITY, AND SUCCINCTNESS OF PROPOSAL (Max. 10 points)
Proposers will be evaluated and scored on how well they followed proposal format and
response content requirements, and on how clear and understandable the proposal is. There is
no limit on the number of pages for the proposal, but proposers should not assume that more
is better in preparation of their proposals. Lengthy and verbose proposals will not be viewed
favorably.
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS PAGE 11 OF 12
STREET IMPROVEMENT AND REPAIR BONDS
SECTION IV – PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND CONTRACT AWARD
A. RESPONSIVE PROPOSER
Proposers that submit all of the required information, on time and in the requested format, per the
requirements of this RFQ will be considered responsive proposers. Only those proposals from
responsive proposers will be considered for evaluation. Non-responsive proposers will be notified
in writing that they did not meet the submittal requirements and will be disqualified from further
consideration.
B. EVALUATION CRITERIA
The City will make a selection based on the evaluation of the written proposals from responsive
proposers, and any interviews it conducts. The City may elect to interview all responsive proposers
or only the highest ranked responsive proposers. The City reserves the right to make a selection
based only on the evaluation of the written proposals and not conduct any interviews. Written
proposals and interviews will be evaluated based on the following criteria:
Information gained during an interview may be used to re-evaluate proposals according to the
above criteria.
C. METHOD OF SELECTION
A selection committee, comprised of the Community Development Department Staff, will evaluate
each submitted written proposal and each interview, when applicable, based on the criteria and
weight given to each as set forth in the table in Section IV (B) above. Based upon the evaluation,
the City will select the highest ranked firms to be included on the short list of consultants or
consultant teams (expected to be approximately five to eight firms) that will be used to provide

Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 17 of 19 

Section 8 - Proposal Evaluation Criteria.
Evaluation of the RFP will be based on a point system where responses to the requests for 
information will be scored by members of the Evaluation Committee.  The possible point values are 
listed by each evaluation criterion.  Results obtained in reference checks may be used to score any 
relevant evaluation criteria.  Reference checks will be limited to information that is listed within the 
evaluation criteria.  The Evaluation Committee may contact Proposers for clarification of proposal 
responses; however no additions, deletions or substitutions that cannot be termed as clarifications 
may be made to proposals.

The criteria to be used by the City in evaluating responses to perform the requested services are 
listed below:
            A.  Proposer’s qualifications 30%
            B.  FBO management and development experience 20%
            C.  Proposed Operating Plan including  20%
                 - Transition Plan
                 - FBO Staffing Plan
                 - Airport Marketing Plan
            D.  Proposed Capital Improvement Plan 20%
            E.  Revenue to City/Airport 10% 



Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 18 of 19 22

Proposer’s Declaration 

PROPOSER UNDERSTANDS, AGREES, AND WARRANTS: 

a. That Proposer has carefully read and fully understands that the information provided by the
City was provided for general informational purposes only.

b. That Proposer has the capability to successfully undertake and complete the responsibilities and
obligations of the proposal being submitted.

c. That Proposer’s information must be submitted with the proposal and is attached hereto.

d. That this proposal may be withdrawn by requesting such withdrawal in writing at any time prior 
to 5:00 PM, local time, on the date that the proposal is due but may not be withdrawn for a 
period of 120 days after such date.

e. That all information contained in the proposal is true and correct to the best of Proposer’s
knowledge and belief.

f. That Proposer did not, in any way, collude, conspire, or agree directly or indirectly with any
person, firm, corporation, or other Proposer in regard to the amount, terms, or conditions of
this proposal.

g. That Proposer did not receive unauthorized information from, nor initiate contact with, the
McMinnville City Council, Airport Advisory Committee, the Airport Staff, the Airport Legal
Counsel, or the Airport Consultant(s) during the proposal period except as provided for in the
Request for Proposals proposal package.

h. That no officer or employee of the City of McMinnville or other affiliated City officer or
employee shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in any contract with the City, or
shall be financially interested, directly or indirectly, in the sale to the City of any materials,
supplies, or service.

i. That the City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and to negotiate fees, terms,
and provisions which, in the County’s sole opinion, is in the best interest of the City of
McMinnville.



Request for Proposals    Fixed Based Operator 

Page 19 of 19 23

Acknowledged and Accepted By: ______________________________________ 

 Title: ______________________________________ 

  Print Name: ______________________________________ 

    Date: _______________________________________ 

That by submission of this Proposal, the Proposer acknowledges that the City has the right to 
make any inquiry it deems appropriate to substantiate or supplement information supplied by 
Proposer, and Proposer hereby grants the City permission to make said inquiries, and to 
provide any and all requested documentation in a timely manner.

j.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BLANK PAGE 



AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 
Tuesday, November 3, 2015 
6:30pm 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 5. FAA LEASE REQUEST 
 

 Attachment 1:  Staff Memo 
 Attachment 2:  Proposed Lease. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BLANK PAGE 



 
M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

 

DATE: October 27, 2015 

TO:  Airport Commission 

FROM: Rich Spofford, Engineering Services Manager 

SUBJECT: FAA Lease – Airport Property 
 

 

Attached for the Commission’s review and consideration is a new Lease Agreement 
with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for 1,173 square feet of office space in 
what is currently known as the Oregon State Police (OSP) building at 3975 Cirrus 
Avenue.  The FAA has leased this space for many years, and their current 10-year 
lease for the space expired on September 30, 2015.   
 
Given that the current lease is now 10-years old, it is FAA’s policy to negotiate a new 
lease rather than do an amendment or extension to the current lease. The proposed 
lease is attached for the Commission’s consideration.   
 
This lease agreement and lease terms were negotiated and approved by City Attorney 
Candace Haines (who has since retired), and the lease is similar to the previous lease, 
as amended.  This term of the new lease is 10 years (October 2015 – September 
2025).   
 
The current annual lease amount (as of September 2015) is $12,087.84, and the FAA 
has agreed to a lease rate that has 3% annual increases over the term of the lease.  
That said, FAA prefers to have a set monthly lease amount for the term of the lease 
because leases with annual cost increases must be approved annually.  
 
Therefore, the total lease amount over the term of the lease (10 years), including 3% 
annual increases, was calculated.  That total amount was divided by the term of the 
lease (120 months), to set the monthly lease amount ($1,189.42 per month).  Those 
calculations are summarized in the following table:  

 



FAA Lease Staff Memo 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Airport Commission, by motion and 
vote, make a recommendation that the City Council approve the proposed Lease 
Agreement with the FAA. 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 1 of 13 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SMALL SPACE LEASE FOR REAL PROPERTY 
This Lease is entered into by and between The City of McMinnville 

1. Terms 

whose interest in the 
property hereinafter described is that of Owner, hereby referred to as Lessor and the United 
States of America, hereinafter referred to as the Government or FAA.  The Parties hereto, and for 
the consideration hereinafter mentioned, covenant and agree as follows: 

1.1. DESCRIPTION (7/14) - The Lessor hereby leases to the Government the following 
described premises located at 3975 Cirrus Ave, McMinnville, OR 97128 including 
parking. 

Approximately 1,173 square feet of which 958 square feet is comprised of common 
space to include rooms 110, 111 (offices) & 113 (storage room).  215 square feet is the 
pro rata portion of the common area, as well as access to the automation room from true 
floor to the top of the plenum for ground wire and RCLR wire access.  The Government 
agrees to coordinate access to such space with the City or any other future 
Lessee/Tenant of the automation room.   

The Lessor shall provide 2 reserved off-street parking spaces at no additional cost to the 
Government. Compliant accessible parking spaces shall be provided in accordance with 
the requirements of the Architectural Barriers Act Accessibility Standards (ABAAS) 42 
U.S.C 4151 and as set forth in the ABAAS scoping table. The Lessor shall maintain the 
parking areas in good repair and provide snow and ice removal, as well as the removal 
of any obstruction that limits FAA access to its designated spaces. 

1.2. LEASE TERM (1/01) - To have and to hold, for the term commencing on October 1, 
2015 and continuing through September 30, 2025 inclusive, PROVIDED, that adequate 
appropriations are available from year to year for the payment of rentals. 

1.3. CANCELLATION (8/02) - The Government may terminate this lease at any time, in 
whole or in part, if the Real Estate Contracting Officer (RECO) determines that a 
termination is in the best interest of the Government, on or after November 1, 2015 by 
giving at least 30 days’ notice in writing to the Lessor. No rental will accrue after the 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 2 of 13 

effective date of termination. Said notice will be computed commencing with the day 
after the date of mailing. 

1.4. RENTAL (7/14) - Rent in the amount of $1,189.42 per month will be payable to the 
Lessor in arrears, without the submission of invoices or vouchers, and subject to 
available appropriations. The rental payments are due on the first business day following 
the end of the payment period. Rent will be considered paid on the date a check is dated 
or an electronic funds transfer is made. Rent for a lesser period will be prorated. Checks 
will be made payable to: The City of McMinnville at 230 NE 2nd Street, McMinnville, 
OR 97128.  

1.5. HOLDOVER (7/14) - If after the expiration of the lease, the Government shall retain 
possession of the premises, the lease shall continue in force and effect on a month-to-
month basis.  Rent shall be paid in accordance with the terms of the lease, in arrears on a 
prorated base, at the rate paid during the lease term.  This period shall continue until the 
Government shall have signed a new lease with the Lessor, acquire the property in fee, 
or vacated the premises. 

1.6. LESSORS SUCCESSORS (10/96) - The terms and provisions of this lease and the 
conditions herein bind the Lessor and the Lessor's heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns.  

2. 

2.1. ACCESSIBILITY

GENERAL CLAUSES 

 (7/14) - 

www.access-board.gov

The Building and the leased premises shall be accessible to 
persons with disabilities pursuant to the Architectural Barriers Act and Rehabilitation 
Act as detailed in the Architectural Barriers Act Accessibility Standards (ABAAS) 41 
CFR Parts 102-71, 102-72, et al, and all applicable state and local accessibility laws and 
regulations.  ABAAS is available at 

Subject to the exception set forth herein, separate ABAAS compliant toilet facilities for 
men and women shall be provided on each floor where the FAA leases space.  Separate 
ABAAS compliant toilet facilities shall not be required if due to the age of the building, 
design layout, or other structural requirements, it is technically infeasible to do so.  In 
the event the Lessor determines that it is technically infeasible to provide separate 
ABAAS compliant toilet facilities, the Lessor shall provide the basis for the 
determination of 

. 

technical infeasibility in writing to the Real Estate Contracting Officer, 
together with all supporting documentation.   

Water closets and urinals shall not be visible when the exterior door is open. Each toilet 
room shall contain toilet paper dispensers, soap dispensers, paper towel dispensers, 
waste receptacles; a coin operated sanitary napkin dispenser with receptacle for each 
toilet in the women’s restroom, disposable toilet seat cover dispensers, a convenience 
outlet, and hot and cold water for all restrooms. No fewer than two drinking fountains 
shall be provided. One drinking fountain shall be a low unit commonly called a 
wheelchair unit and one drinking fountain shall comply with standing persons 

http://www.access-board.gov/�


CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 3 of 13 

requirements, unless sufficient space is not available to provide both a wheelchair unit 
and a standing persons unit.  In such instance, and subject to the approval of the Real 
Estate Contracting Officer, a single unit able to accommodate both disabled and non-
disabled persons shall be provided.   

2.2. CONTRACT DISPUTES (11/03) - All contract disputes arising under or related to this 
lease contract will be resolved through the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
dispute resolution system at the Office of Dispute Resolution for Acquisition (ODRA) 
and will be governed by the procedures set forth in 14 C.F.R. Parts 14 and 17, which are 
hereby incorporated by reference. Judicial review, where available, will be in accordance 
with 49 U.S.C. 46110 and will apply only to final agency decisions. A Lessor may seek 
review of a final FAA decision only after its administrative remedies have been 
exhausted. 

All Contract Disputes will be in writing and will be filed at the following address: 

Office of Dispute Resolution for Acquisition, AGC-70 
Federal Aviation Administration, 800 Independence Avenue, S.W., Room 
323,Washington, DC 20591 
Telephone: (202) 267-3290 
Facsimile: (202) 267-3720 

A contract dispute against the FAA will be filed with the ODRA within two (2) years of 
the accrual of the lease contract claim involved. A contract dispute is considered to be 
filed on the date it is received by the ODRA. 

The full text of the Contract Disputes clause is incorporated by reference. Upon request 
the full text will be provided by the RECO. 

2.3. MAINTENANCE OF THE PREMISES (10/96) - The LESSOR will maintain the 
demised premises, including the building, grounds, and all equipment, fixtures, and 
appurtenances furnished by the LESSOR under this lease, in good repair and tenantable 
condition. 

2.4. FAILURE IN PERFORMANCE (10/96) - In the event the Lessor fails to perform any 
service, to provide any item, or meet any requirement of this lease, the Government may 
perform the service, provide the item, or meet the requirement, either directly or through 
a contract. The Government may deduct any costs incurred for the service or item, 
including administrative costs, from the rental payments. No deduction of rent pursuant 
to this clause will constitute default by the Government on this lease. 

2.5. NO WAIVER (10/96) - No failure by the Government to insist upon strict performance 
of any provision of this lease, or failure to exercise any right, or remedy consequent to a 
breach thereof, will constitute a waiver of any such breach in the future. 

2.6. NON-RESTORATION (10/96) - The FAA will have no obligation to restore and/or 
rehabilitate, either wholly or partially, the premises under this lease. It is further agreed 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 4 of 13 

that the FAA may abandon in place any or all of the structures, improvements and/or 
equipment installed in or located upon said property by the FAA during its tenure. 
Notice of abandonment will be conveyed to the Lessor in writing. 

2.7. DAMAGE BY FIRE OR OTHER CASUALTY (10/96) - If the building or structure is 
partially or totally destroyed or damaged by fire or other casualty or if environmentally 
hazardous conditions are found to exist so that the leased premises is untenantable as 
determined by the Government, the Government may terminate the lease, in whole or in 
part, immediately by giving written notice to the Lessor and no further rental will be due. 

2.8. DELIVERY AND CONDITION (10/96) - Unless the Government elects to have the 
space occupied in increments, the space must be delivered ready for occupancy as a 
complete unit. The Government reserves the right to determine when the space is ready 
to occupy. 

2.8.1. OCCUPANCY PERMIT (7/14) - The premises offered will have a valid 
Occupancy Permit, issued by the local jurisdiction, for the intended use of the 
Government, or the Lessor will complete and provide a certified copy of "FAA 
Safety & Environmental Checklist" form, in lieu of an occupancy permit, at the 
contracting officer’s discretion. 

2.9. HOLD HARMLESS (10/96) - In accordance with and subject to the conditions, 
limitations and exceptions set forth in the Federal Tort Claims Act of 1948, as amended 
(28 USC 2671 et. seq.), hereafter termed "the Act" the Government will be liable to 
persons damaged by any personal injury, death or injury to or loss of property, which is 
caused by a negligent or wrongful act or omission of an employee of the Government 
while acting within the scope of his office or employment under circumstances where a 
private person would be liable in accordance with the law of the place where the act or 
omission occurred. The foregoing shall not be deemed to extend the Government's 
liability beyond that existing under the Act at the time of such act or omission or to 
preclude the Government from using any defense available in law or equity. 

2.10. CLAUSES INCLUDED BY REFERENCE

a. 

 (7/14) - This Lease incorporate one or more 
clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.  
Upon request the full text will be provided by the RECO. 

b. 
DEFAULT BY LESSOR (10/96) 

c. 
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS (10/96) 

d. 
OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT (10/96) 

e. 
COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES (8/02) 

f. 
ANTI-KICKBACK (10/96) 

g. 
EXAMINATION OF RECORDS (10/96) 

h. 
ASSIGNMENT OF CLAIMS (10/96) 

i. 
SUBORDINATION, NONDISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT (1/14) 

j. 
SUBLEASE (10/96) 
INTEGRATED AGREEMENT (10/96) 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 5 of 13 

k. 
l. 

 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY (10/96) 

m. 

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION FOR SPECIAL DISABLED AND VIETNAM ERA 
VETERANS (10/96)  

n. 
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION FOR DISABLED WORKERS (10/96) 

3. FINANCIAL CLAUSES  

UNAUTHORIZED NEGOTIATING (10/96) 

3.1. SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT (7/14) - The System for Award 
Management (SAM) system the FAA's required method to receive vendor information.  
However you have been granted an exception to SAM and therefore must provide your 
initial payment information and any future changes to your payment information to the 
Real Estate Contracting Officer on a completed and signed "Vendor Miscellaneous 
Payment Information" form, together with any other required notice under this contract. 

3.2. CLAUSES INCLUDED BY REFERENCE

a. 

 (7/14) - This Lease incorporates one or more 
clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.  
Upon request the full text will be provided by the RECO. 

4. DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION CLAUSES   

ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER (EFT) (7/14) 

4.1. CONSTRUCTION COORDINATION (8/02) - A pre-construction meeting shall be held 
at the facility prior to the commencement of any construction, renovation, remodeling, or 
repair within the leased premises and areas connected to or integrated with the leased 
premises. If any items on the checklist are questionable or undone, full resolution of the 
issues will be expected before the project starts. The pre-construction meeting will be 
planned, scheduled, and coordinated with the RECO, the Government’s supervisor or 
manager responsible for the facility, at least one week before the execution of the work. 

4.2. INSPECTION (10/96) - The Government reserves the right, at any time after the lease is 
signed and during the term of the lease, to inspect the leased premises and all other areas 
of the building to which access is necessary to ensure a safe and healthy work 
environment for the Government tenants and the Lessor's performance under this lease. 
The Government shall have the right to perform sampling of suspected hazardous 
conditions. 

4.3. WARRANTY OF SPACE (4/12)  

a. Notwithstanding inspection and acceptance by the Government or any provision 
concerning the conclusiveness thereof, the Lessor warrants that all space leased to the 
Government under this contract, which space is not limited to that set forth in 
paragraph A.1 of this Lease, but which also shall include  spaces above suspended 
ceilings in the leased space, air plenums elsewhere in the building which service the 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 6 of 13 

leased space, engineering spaces in the same ventilation zone as the leased space, 
public spaces and common use space (e.g., lobbies, hallways) will, at the time of 
acceptance and during the term of this Lease, including all extensions thereof, comply 
with the asbestos containing material (ACM) and polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) 
requirements of the Toxic Substance Control Act (TSCA). The Real Estate 
Contracting Officer shall notify the Lessor in writing of any failure to comply with 
asbestos requirements, within 30 days after the discovery thereof. All construction by 
the Lessor is required to comply with the OSHA regulations for Asbestos.   

b. The leased premises shall be free of all asbestos-containing material, PCB’s, Radon, 
and other environmentally hazardous substances during the time of this lease. If either 
ACMs or PCBs are found to be in the leased space, the Government reserves the right 
to require the Lessor, at no cost to the Government, to take whatever corrective action 
required by the Toxic Substance Control Act, EPA regulations and state 
requirements. All facilities constructed prior to 1981 are required to have an asbestos 
building survey conducted by a qualified inspector, including a visual examination 
and bulk sampling. All ACM survey reports must be sent to the RECO. 

c. The leased premises shall be free of all asbestos-containing material, PCB’s, Radon, 
and other environmentally hazardous substances during the time of this lease. If either 
ACMs or PCBs are found to be in the leased space, the Government reserves the right 
to require the Lessor, at no cost to the Government, to take whatever corrective action 
required by the Toxic Substance Control Act, EPA regulations and state 
requirements. All facilities constructed prior to 1981 are required to have an asbestos 
building survey conducted by a qualified inspector, including a visual examination 
and bulk sampling. All ACM survey reports must be sent to the RECO. 

1. "Acceptance", as used in this clause means the act of an authorized 
representative of the Government by which the Government assumes for 
itself, or as an agent of another, the leased premises as ready for occupancy or 
approves a portion of the premises for occupancy in accordance with the 
provisions of this lease contract. 

2. "Correction", as used in this clause, means (i) the removal, encapsulation or 
enclosure of any friable asbestos materials found in the space leased to the 
Government, spaces above suspended ceilings in the leased space, air plenums 
elsewhere in the building which service the leased space, public spaces, 
engineering spaces in the same ventilation zone as the leased space and 
common use space (e.g., lobbies, hallways). Following such abatement 
actions, the Lessor shall adhere to the FAA's required post-asbestos-abatement 
air monitoring program. (ii) With regard to non-friable asbestos materials in 
good condition, it means the establishment and execution of a special 
operations and maintenance program and an abatement plan, approved by the 
Government, to be implemented from the time the materials are discovered 
through the remainder of the lease term, and (iii) with regard to PCBs, it 
involves the removal or retrofitting, in accordance with EPA regulations, of 
any PCB equipment present in the building.  



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 7 of 13 

4.4. DOORS (4/12) - Exterior doors shall be weather tight, equipped with cylinder locks and 
door checks, automatic door closures and open outward. The FAA will be furnished at 
least two master keys and two keys for each lock. Interior doors must be solid cored and 
at least 32 by 80 inches with a minimum opening of 32 inches and be of sturdy 
construction. Fire doors shall conform to NFPA Standard No. 80. As designated by the 
FAA, doors shall be equipped with non-removable hinge pins, and locks with 7-pin 
removable cores. The FAA shall provide cores.   

4.5. LIGHTING (4/12) - Modern, diffused, energy efficient fluorescent fixtures shall be 
provided at working surfaces that maintain a uniform lighting level of 50 foot candles. 
Emergency lighting must provide at least 0.5 foot candles of illumination throughout the 
exit path, including exit access routes, exit stairways, or other routes such as 
passageways to the outside of the building. 

4.6. ADHESIVES AND SEALANTS (1/12) - The Lessor shall use adhesives and sealants 
that contain no formaldehyde or heavy metals. 

5. SERVICE, UTILITIES, AND MAINTENANCE  

5.1. SERVICE, UTILITIES AND MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES - The Lessor shall 
maintain the leased premises, including outside areas in a clean condition. The Lessor 
shall provide the labor, materials, equipment and supervision necessary to ensure good 
repair and tenable condition.  The Lessor shall provide the following: 

a. Services, utilities, and maintenance will be provided daily, extending from 6 a.m. 
to 6 p.m. except Saturday, Sunday, and Federal holidays. Services supplied to 
technical equipment will be supplied 24 hours a day, and seven days a week. The 
Government will have access to the leased premises at all times, including the use 
of electrical services, toilets, lights, elevators, and Government office machines 
without additional payment.  

b. Water (hot and cold) and sewer to leased premises. 

UTILITIES NOT PROVIDED BY THE LESSOR  -  In accordance with 
Intergovernmental Agreement OSP IGA #109-2010, FAA Agreement DTFAWN-
13-A-00005, the FAA will reimburse the Oregon State Police for its share of utility 
costs specified in Paragraph 4.1 of the above mentioned agreement.  Utilities 
excluded from this lease include water, sewer, electrical usage, gas, trash removal, 
janitorial services, annual fire extinguisher inspections, building and grounds 
maintenance, and any other costs associated with maintaining the building. 

5.2. HVAC (4/14) - All heating, ventilation and air-conditioning systems that service the 
leased space must maintain a temperature range of 68-72 degrees Fahrenheit year-round. 
These temperatures must be maintained during hours of operation throughout the leased 
premises and service areas regardless of outside temperatures. For purposes of this 
paragraph, compliance with ASHRAE standard ANSI/ ANSI/ASHRAE 62-1999 - 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 8 of 13 

Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality, will meet FAA’s requirements for indoor 
air quality.  

In order to ensure that there is no degradation of air quality or air flow in the leased 
premises during the term of the Lease, the Lessor agrees to service the roof and/or 
ground mounted HVAC units (check for defects, lubricate, make adjustments, change 
the filters, cleaned and make other necessary service requirements) every 60 days.  
Lessor also agrees to service the VAV boxes annually (on or before each lease 
anniversary date).  Such service will include checking the temperature ranges (refer to 
section B4), checking all speeds on each fan, cleaning the fans and other components, 
replacing defective parts and completing other necessary repairs and maintenance. 
Electrical power to the premises for the operation of lights, communications equipment, 
and office machines. 

5.3. CLAUSES INCLUDED BY REFERENCE

a. 

 (7/14) - This Lease incorporates one or more 
clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.  
Upon request the full text will be provided by the RECO. 

6. FIRE PREVENTION AND SAFETY 

PEST CONTROL (4/12) 

6.1. FACILITY SECURITY (4/12) - Security requirements for Government occupied space 
must meet minimum-security accreditation standards for the type of facility covered by 
this lease. The FAA Facility Security Management Program defines facility security 
accreditation standard levels.  The security requirements identified below are tailored 
specifically for the type of facility covered by this lease. The Lessor shall provide or 
make accommodation to provide for all the security requirements listed herein for the 
leased premises covered by this lease agreement:  None   

The local SSE will determine any additional security upgrades that are required to meet 
accreditation and shall conduct a final security assessment of the building.  The Lessor 
shall provide maintenance services to the security upgrades installed by the Lessor 
within the leased premises and covered under this lease.  

6.2. CLAUSES INCLUDED BY REFERENCE

a. 

 (7/14) - This Lease incorporate one or more 
clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.  
Upon request the full text will be provided by the RECO. 

b. 
OSHA REQUIREMENTS (10/96) 

c. 
EOSH REQUIREMENTS (4/12) 

d. 
FIRE PROTECTION AND LIFE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS (4/12) 

e. 
ELECTRICAL SAFETY (4/12) 
LESSOR PERSONNEL SUITABILITY REQUIREMENTS (7/14) 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 9 of 13 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL CLAUSES 

7.1. INDOOR AIR QUALITY (4/12) - The Lessor shall control contaminants at the source 
and/or operate the space in such a manner that the indicator levels for carbon monoxide 
(CO), carbon dioxide (CO2), and formaldehyde (HCHO), are not exceeded. The 
indicator levels for office area are as follows: CO-9 parts per million (PPM) time 
weighted average (TWA - 8-hour sample); CO2 - 1,000 PPM (TWA); HCHO - 0.1 PPM 
(TWA). All indoor air contaminant levels in leased space will be kept below appropriate 
OSHA regulations or Consensus standards, whichever is stricter. Air quality and facility 
cleaning will be adequate to prevent the growth of mold, mildew and bacteria. Any 
visual evidence of these will require immediate sampling and remediation. 
Moisture/standing water will be controlled to prevent the growth of these. 

During working hours, ventilation shall be provided in accordance with the latest edition 
of ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 62, Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality.  

The Lessor shall promptly investigate indoor air quality (IAQ) complaints and shall 
implement controls including alteration of building operating procedures (e.g., adjusting 
air intakes, adjusting air distribution, cleaning and maintaining HVAC, etc.). The FAA is 
responsible for addressing IAQ problems resulting from its own activities. 

MSDS will be provided to the FAA facility manager as well as a copy sent to the RECO 
for all cleaning solutions used in the FAA spaces. 

7.2. CLAUSES INCLUDED BY REFERENCE (7/14) - This Lease incorporates one or more 
clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.

a. 

  
Upon request the full text will be provided by the RECO. 

b. 
GENERAL HEALTH AND SAFETY STANDARDS (8/02) 

c. 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS (4/12) 

d. 
HALON (4/12) 

e. 
RADON (10/96) 

8. ADDITIONAL CLAUSES 

REFRIGERANTS (8/02) 

General Clauses 

8.1. EXCUSABLE DELAYS (7/14) –  

a. The Lessor shall not be in default because of any failure to perform this lease 
under its terms if the failure arises from causes beyond the control and without the 
fault or negligence of the Lessor. Examples of these causes are (1) acts of God or 
of the public enemy, (2) acts of the Government in either its sovereign or 
contractual capacity, (3) fires, (4) floods, (5) epidemics, (6) quarantine restrictions, 
(7) strikes, (8) freight embargoes, and (9) unusually severe weather. In each 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 10 of 13 

instance, the failure to perform must be beyond the control and without the fault or 
negligence of the Lessor. 'Default' includes failure to make progress in the work so 
as to endanger performance. 

b. The Real Estate Contracting Officer shall ascertain the facts and extent of the 
failure. If the Real Estate Contracting Officer determines that any failure to 
perform results from one or more of the causes above, the delivery schedule shall 
be revised, subject to the rights of the Government under the termination clause of 
this contract. 

8.2. ADJUSTMENT FOR VACANT PREMISES (10/96) - If the Government fails to 
occupy any portion of the leased premises or vacates the premises in whole or in part 
prior to expiration of the firm term of the lease, the rental rate shall be reduced as 
follows: The rate shall be reduced by that portion of the costs per square foot of 
operating expenses not required to maintain the space. Said reduction shall occur after 
the Government gives 30 days prior notice to the Lessor, and shall continue in effect 
until the Government occupies the premises or the lease expires or is terminated.  

Financial Clauses 

8.3. CONTRACTOR IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - DATA UNIVERSAL NUMBERING 
SYSTEM (DUNS) NUMBER - REAL PROPERTY (7/14) 

a. Definitions. As used in this clause 

"Contractor Identification Number," as used in this provision, means "Data 
Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number, which is a nine-digit number 
assigned by Dun and Bradstreet Information Services, to identify unique business 
entities (taken from SAM clause) 

"Data Universal Numbering System +4 (DUNS+4) number" means the DUNS 
number assigned by D&B plus a 4-character suffix that may be assigned by a 
business concern. (D&B has no affiliation with this 4-character suffix.) This 4-
character suffix may be assigned at the discretion of the business concern to 
establish additional SAM records for identifying alternative Electronic Fund 
Transfer. 

b. Contractor identification is essential for receiving payment and complying with 
statutory contract reporting requirements. Therefore, the offeror will provide its 
DUNS or DUNS+4 number below. The DUNS number will be used by the 
Contracting Officer to verify that the offeror is registered in the SAM 
database.DUNS OR DUNS+4 NUMBER:                                                     

c. If the offeror does not have a DUNS number, he should contact Dun and 
Bradstreet at 1-866-705-5711, or via the internet at http://www.dnb.com directly to 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 11 of 13 

obtain one.  Detailed requirements for obtaining a DUNS number is contained in 
Paragraph (c) of clause "System for Award Management-Real Property". 

 Design and Construction Clauses   

8.4. CEILINGS (10/96) - Must have acoustical treatment with a flame spread of 25 or less 
and smoke development rating of 50 or less. 

8.5. ERECTION OF SIGNS (10/96) - The Government shall have the right to erect on or 
attach to the Lessor's premises such signs as may be required to clearly identify the 
Government's facility. Said signs so erected will remain the property of the Government 
and shall be removed from the premises upon termination of the Lease. 

8.6. WINDOW AND FLOOR COVERING (4/12) - All exterior windows shall be equipped 
with window covering. Floors will be carpeted with a commercial grade of carpet 
acceptable (carpet tiles or carpet broadloom) to the FAA. Existing floor and window 
coverings may be accepted at the discretion of the RECO however; prior to occupancy 
all carpeting and window coverings shall be cleaned. 

At no additional cost to the FAA, the Lessor shall replace carpeting at least every five  (5) 
years during FAA occupancy or any time during the lease when: 

• Backing or underlayment is exposed, 
• There are noticeable variations in surface color or texture, and/or 
• The condition of the carpet is such that it presents a clear and present danger to 

pedestrians. 

Replacement includes moving and return of furniture including dismantling, moving and 
re-assembling the FAA’s systems furniture if directed by the FAA 

8.7. WIRING FOR TELEPHONES (10/96) - The Government reserves the right to provide 
its own telephone service in the space to be leased. It may have inside wiring and 
telephone equipment installed by the local telephone company or a private contractor. 
Alternately, the FAA may wish to consider using inside wiring provided by the building, 
if available. However, the final decision will remain the Government’s. 

8.8. INSTALLATION OF ANTENNAS, CABLES AND OTHER APPURTENANCES 
(4/12) - The FAA shall have the right to install, operate and maintain antennas, wires and 
their supporting structures, including any linking wires, connecting cables and conduits 
atop and within buildings and structures, or at other locations, as deemed necessary by 
the Government.  The Government will coordinate with the Lessor when installing 
antennas, cables, and other appurtenances.  

8.9. PAINTING (4/12) - Prior to occupancy, all surfaces must be newly painted with non-
lead based paints in colors acceptable to the FAA. All surfaces must be repainted after 
working hours at Lessor’s expense at least once every five (5) years. Such repainting 



CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 12 of 13 

includes the moving and returning of the furniture, including dismantling, moving and 
re-assembling the FAA’s systems furniture, if directed by the FAA, at the Lessor’s 
expense.  Any existing lead based paint shall be properly maintained and managed per 
existing regulatory requirements. If there is flaking paint, it shall be sampled for lead. If 
containing lead, it shall be abated by the lessor prior to occupancy in accordance with 
the current USEPA regulation. 

Service, Utilities, and Maintenance  

8.10. MAINTENANCE OF GROUND AND WALKWAY (7/14) - The Lessor shall 
maintain in good condition landscape plants and lawns. The Lessor shall also remove 
snow and ice from the entrances, exterior walks and parking areas around the premises, 
prior to and during the Government’s hours set forth in 4.1. 

8.11. LANDSCAPING (1/12) 

a. Where conditions permit, the site shall be landscaped for low maintenance and 
water conservation with plants that are either native or well-adapted to local 
growing conditions. 

b. Landscape management practices shall prevent or minimize pollution by: 

1. Employing practices which avoid or minimize the need for fertilizers and 
pesticides; 

2. Prohibiting the use of the 2,4-Dichlorophenoxyacetic Acid (2,4-D) herbicide 
and organophosphates; and 

3. Composting/recycling all yard waste. 

c. The Lessor shall use landscaping products with recycled content that meets the 
requirements as required by Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA's) 
Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines (CPG) for landscaping products. Refer to 
EPA's CPG web site, WWW.EPA.GOV/CPG.  

d. The RECO shall approve the landscaping to be provided in writing. 

Fire Prevention and Safety Clause 

8.12. SEISMIC SAFETY FOR EQUIPMENT (4/12) - The lessor shall ensure that 
building installed equipment is properly anchored to protect personnel during a seismic 
event, in accordance with DOT Specification FAA-G-2100H, Electronic Equipment, 
General Requirements, Section 3.3.5, Personnel Safety and Health, and requirements for 
the seismic zone in which the facility is located.  

 

 

http://www.epa.gov/CPG�


CONTRACT #: DTFAWN-15-L-00013 
Location:  McMinnville, OR 

FAA Identification:  MMV, ADM 
 

2.6.9 Small Space Lease  
July 2014 
OMB Control No. 2120-0595        Page 13 of 13 

9. CLOSING 

9.1. NOTICES - 

 TO THE LESSOR: 
 Community Development Director 

All notices/correspondence shall be in writing, reference the Lease number, 
and addressed as follows: 

 231 NE Fifth Street 
 McMinnville, OR 97128 
  
 TO THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION  
 ATTN: Real Estate, ALO-820 
 1601 Lind Ave SW 
 Renton, WA 98057 

9.2. ATTACHMENTS

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed their names. 

:  None 

LESSOR: 

BY      

 Signature Title  Date 
 

THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT BINDING ON THE GOVERNMENT OF THE UNITED 
STATES OF AMERICA

BY 

 UNLESS SIGNED BELOW BY AUTHORIZED 
CONTRACTING OFFICER. 

  Contracting Officer   

 Signature Title  Date 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	July 21st minutes
	FBO RFP Staff Memo
	Konect RFP
	Infinite RFP
	FBO RFP
	FAA Lease Staff Memo
	FAA Lease



